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28 March 2022 

 

Jim White 

Facilities/Construction Manager 

Community Bank 

206 North Greeno Road 

Fairhope, Alabama 36532 

 

15094 Community bank Headquarters – Precast review 

 

Dear Jim: 

 

Based on the following documentation received over the course of the precast remediation 

period, Dale Partners Architects approves the work based on the following: 

 

1. Stamped field modifications by William Edd Mitchell, Jr beginning on 1/10/2020 and 

final report on 7/9/2021 (attachment) 

2. Final Precast panel Inspection by Burns, Cooley, Dennis, Inc., dated 3/3/2022 

(attachment) 

3. Field Reports by Burns, Cooley, Dennis, Inc. beginning on 10/9/2020 and final report 

on 5/6/2021 (attachment) 

4. Letter from Earl Shimp on 2/15/2022 (attachment) 

5. Certification Letter for Precast Remediation Work by Fountain Construction dated 

3/9/2022 (attachment) 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jeff Barnes, AIA 

Architect 

 

Enclosure 

 Field Modifications by William Mitchell 

 Final Precast Inspection by BCD 

 Field Reports by BCD 

 Letter from Earl Shimp 

 Letter from Contractor 

Cc: Jim White 

 Ryan Puckett 

 David Hughes 
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Paul Purser

From: Jeff Barnes

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2022 1:48 PM

To: Paul Purser

Subject: FW: EXTERNAL Community Bank Headquarters-Jobsite Inspection-February 3, 2022.

I guess the email will serve as the letter  from Shimp  

 

  Jeff Barnes, AIA, ASID, Partner 

T 601 352 5411  |  dalepartners.com 

Email disclaimer: dalepartners.com/disclaimer.  If you cannot access hyperlink, please email sender. 

 

 

From: White, Jim <Jim.White@communitybank.net>  

Sent: Thursday, March 17, 2022 12:41 PM 

To: Jeff Barnes <JeffBarnes@dalepartners.com> 

Subject: Fwd: EXTERNAL Community Bank Headquarters-Jobsite Inspection-February 3, 2022. 

 

 

Sent from my iPhone 

 

  

 

Jim White | Facilities/Construction Manager  

P 251-463-2786 | M 251-463-2786  

Community Bank | 206 North Geeno Road • Fairhope, AL • 36532 

Jim.White@communitybank.net 

       
 

DISCLAIMER: This electronic mail message and any files transmitted with it are intended exclusively for the individual or entity to which it is addressed. 
The message, together with any attachments, may contain confidential and/or privileged information. Any unauthorized review, use, printing, saving, 
copying, disclosure or distribution is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, please immediately advise the sender by reply email 
and delete all copies. Be advised that all replies to this email from your email address will not be automatically encrypted. Information sent via 
unencrypted email may be viewed by unauthorized third parties.  

Begin forwarded message: 

From: earl.shimp@gmail.com 

Date: February 15, 2022 at 9:39:39 PM CST 

To: "White, Jim" <Jim.White@communitybank.net>, "Hughes, David" 

<David.Hughes@communitybank.net> 

Subject: EXTERNAL Community Bank Headquarters-Jobsite Inspection-February 3, 2022. 
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NOTICE:   External Email - Sender is earl.shimp@gmail.com - Please be cautious when opening links 

or attachments in email. 

The purpose of this email is to provide you with my observations and opinions concerning the current 

quality, appearance, and overall visual acceptability of the architectural precast panels at the above 

referenced project. This report reflects the observations made during the site visit which I conducted on 

February 3, 2022 at the request of Community Bank. This report should be considered as a final review 

of the precast and provides my opinion of how the entire exterior precast compares in appearance to 

the North Wall elevation that has previously been established as the benchmark for visual acceptance.  

  

Within this report, I will be addressing the quality and appearance of all the exterior faces of the precast 

panels, the quality of the patching that has been performed, and my opinion regarding if an acceptable 

level of quality and appearance has been accomplished. In developing my opinion, I have based my 

thinking on many factors, including but not limited to the following: 

  

• Reviewing my previous site visit reports and photographs.   

• My visual observations and inspections conducted on Thursday, February 3, 2022. 

• The weather was cloudy. It was not raining during the inspection. It had been raining the 

previous day and during the evening. It was cool and damp and somewhat windy. The precast 

was wet/damp and was drying somewhat in certain areas where the wind was directly hitting 

the precast (windward sides of the building).   

• The project specifications for this project, Section 034500 – Precast Architectural Concrete, 

pages 1-20 of 20. 

• PCI Manual 117 

• My understanding of generally accepted industry standards for architectural precast panels such 

as those on this project, as well as the proper methods of patching, tuck pointing, brick 

replacement, and repairing architectural precast panels. 

• Previous limited written communications between the Architect (Dale Partners) and Community 

Bank, Fountain Construction Company, Inc., and Jackson Precast Inc.  

• My verbal discussions with Jim White of Community Bank as well as discussions on site with 

representatives of Fountain Construction Company, Inc. and Dale Partners.  

• The appearance of the North Elevation precast panels. 

• My entire career in the general contracting and precast concrete industry. 

  

A. OBSERVATIONS 

  

The precast panels at all sides of the building as well as at the drive-through looked very nice. 

The quality of the remedial work is excellent and is visually appealing.  

  

1. The brick that previously were not flush, were tilted, recessed, protruding, and cocked at angles 

have now been removed and replaced and have reached a visually acceptable condition.  

2. The brick returns on the panels appear to be square and plumb and within an acceptable 

tolerance. The “zippered effect” has been greatly reduced and is acceptable. 

3. The mortar joints appear to be properly consolidated.   

4. The mortar joints are uniform in color and do not show visible aggregates.  

5. The brick and the grout joints have been cleaned well and are acceptable.   

6. The white sandblasted panels have reached a level of visual acceptability. The finish is highly 

improved in color and texture. All of the issues previously reported as unacceptable have been 

addressed and are in my opinion acceptable.  

7. In summary, all of the brick inlayed panels, the returns, and the white sandblasted finishes are 

within the level of visual acceptability. The exterior is very pleasing in appearance.  
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B. RECOMMENDATIONS 

  

1. All in all, the exterior precast is within the range of visual acceptability.  

2. Inside the Board Room, 4th Floor, looking out the west window, there are 3 areas in the sill 

portion of the white precast that need to be repaired/patched. These areas were pointed out to 

Mr. Jim White and to Mr. Robert Clay.  

3. During my visit, it was brought to my attention by both Mr. Robert Clay and Mr. Jim White that 

there are a couple of very minor areas currently being touched-up and some minor color 

blending being performed by Artcrete. These were very small and would be completed within a 

very short period of time. I did not actually go and look at exactly what was being done, but 

considering the general appearance of the entire facility, I do not expect these items to be of 

significance.  

4. The building exterior, in my opinion, is beautiful.  

  

After visiting the jobsite, I met with several key employees of the Community Bank. During this visit, I 

detailed my observations as outlined above and provided my opinion that the exterior visual 

appearance of the architectural precast panels is acceptable and a very nice looking facility, one the 

Bank should be very proud of. The appearance of the exterior precast should be accepted.  

  

Also, during our meeting, I highly commended the work ethic, the professionalism, and the “get it done” 

attitude of Fountain Construction Co. Over the span of my career, I have had the privilege of working 

with many general contractors, both large and small, and on projects ranging from several hundred 

thousand dollars up to hundreds of millions of dollars. At no time have I ever seen a general contractor 

display a better team effort and a desire to “get the job done” in the midst of a serious problem. The 

effort required to get the precast appearance up to an acceptable level was a huge undertaking, and 

Fountain Construction Co. performed this task admirably.  

    

Thank you again for this opportunity to be of service. Should you have any questions or comments 

concerning this report, please do not hesitate to contact me.  

  

  

Earl Shimp 

904-631-9935 

earl.shimp@gmail.com 

  

{EXTERNAL}  



 
  
 
March 9, 2022 
 
Mr. Paul Purser 
Dale Partners Architects 
 
Re: Community Bank Headquarters precast remediation work 
 
Dear Paul, 
 
This letter is to certify that Fountain Construction Co., Inc. has completed the remedial work on the 
precast for the project. 
 
The cosmetic repairs were made in accordance with industry standards by Art Crete & Restorations, Inc. 
This company was recommended by Mr. Earl Shimp, the owners third party consultant hired to help deal 
with the problem. 
 
The structural repairs were completed by the precast erectors and Fountain employees as designed by the 
precast designer / engineer. 
 
 
Sincerely 
Fountain Construction Co., Inc. 
 
Brad Fountain 
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